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£\bout the HE Saılnts 1n the Coptic Church

Pr;face
Vısıtors Coptic churches anN! monasterIı1es 1ın these days AIC much surprised
about the noticeable increase of the typıcal octagonal-tube-reliquarıes
velopped 1n dark red velvet OTr siılk either 1ın the narthex OT Al the walls of the
SANCLUAFY. hıs unprecedented numeriıcal expansıon of relıcs reflects t_
atıve orowth of HE saınts, development which certaınly changes both the
spirıtual 4S ell 4S the substance of the tradıtional Coptıic popular pıety.

In thıs rESPECL the present “hagiological rejuvenatıon” 15 remı1inıscent of the
spectacular “spl of relics and salnts which occurred ın 1578 when ın Rome
portions of the Vıa Salarıa collapsed, thereby provıdıng A6C6G655 the subter-
1 Aanlcall catacombs wıth theır EFEASUTES of relics of the early Roman
Martyrs. For the Roman Catholic church of the late 16°h CENTUFY, thıs d1scovery
W as ONEC of the MOST spectacular GVeNts which supported the posttridentine
clesi1astical retorms.

Some Copts fee] that the present renalssance of Coptic churchlife would be
sıgnıfıcantly spırıtually enriched by enlarged “chorus of Saints , orthodox
and non-orthodox, ancıent, medieval] modern. To demonstrate the CXFteNHNE of
thıs recent expansıon, few iıllustrations of modern collections of relıcs 111 be
presented wıthout provıdıng comprehensıve ınventory of salınts. In the hıstorıic
7th CENLUFY Church of the Holy Vırgıin al-Mu’allagah In Old Calro there Aı

nowadays ıfteen octagonal tube-reliquarıes contamıng the bodıly remaıns of
tradıtional, though lesser known, Coptıc Ssalnts ıke Isaac of Tiphre, Apa Hor,
Apa S, Abıskhiron of Qallın, Sama an the Tanner, Onuphrıus, EFG The 1C

Church of St George and Barbara the Nıle ısland Dahab opposıte of Old
Ca1lro seventeen relıquarıes wıth tradıtional bal recently acquıred relıcs
of Sts Augustıine of Hıppo, Thomas of Shanshıft, Apollo and Apıp, the Holy
Innocents of Bethlehem, the Martyrs of Akhmim, Fayyum, Maryut, Antıno6&,
EIt The Church of St Mark, Shubra Garden, Caro. exh1ibıts ın the narthex col-
ection of thırty relıquary-tubes wıth Bıblical, Coptic; Byzantıne and Latın
saınts including the relics of Sts Mary Magdalene, Lazarüs, DPeter Ahal Paul,; 1ım-
othy, Barnabas, the three Byzantıne hiıerarchs, the Yemen1 Salnts of Najran, AU-
oustiıne and the Crown of Thorns ot Christ.
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Probably the largest collection of S1IXtYy relics FCDOSCS 1n the Church of St.
Menas, Fleming, Alexandrıa. hıs accumulation of relics includes those of Bıbli-
cal, Coptic, Ethiopı1an, Byzantıne and Latın saınts 4S ell AS those of lesser
known Coptıic patrıarchs and CVENn id-)oth CENLUFY pper Egyptian bıshops. It
aD PCals that the collector originated trom Manfalut, Abnub OT Asyut At al y
Tate; he had AT hıs disposal exceptional inftormatıon of present DPpEeI Egyptıian
dioceses. For thıs iınventory ındebted Mrs Sawsan Hulsman of Ca1lro
who has kındly provıded the full ınventory!

(Ine wonders about the meanıngfulness of presenting relıcs of 7th CENTULCY N
m1nı Martyrs ıke Arethas early Roman Ssalnts ıke Sebastıan, Lucı1a (3 Agnes

Coptıc believers, unless the intention 15 demonstrate the INCSSapc of Uun1-
versal, ecumenı1cal wıtness tor Christ.

The Introduction T AacCces the of the MOST famous inventorI1es ot relıcs
throughout the centurIies. The “Beginnings of Cult- describes the Varıous of-
tic1al translations of relics 1n the 20th CENLUCY that iınspıred almost competitıve
CApCcINCSS parıshes assembile 4S INalıy relıcs A4AS possible. “The Relics of
the Theban Martyrs” WEIC the first European ımport of hitherto completely
known salnts. The “ Archeological Discoveries” of the nınetles of the 20th CEeMN-

LUurYy led unprecedented amassıngz of aNONYINOUS relics trom the cemeterı1es
EASE of Akhmim, Naglun, Antınoe erc Wırth the manıtold and Varıous oifts of
lics of European Roman Catholic churches and monasterıes through the Zz00d
offices of Metropolitan Marcus of France Latın chorus of medieval ath-
olıc sa1lnts tound ıtselt established 1n Ian y Coptic churches from Alexandrıa
Aswan.

H Introduction

Whereas the officıal cult of the Coptic Orthodox Church 15 by ItSs veLrY NMAature

unchangeable, the popular pıety of the believers constantly adjusts ıtselt
ILNECTOUS unforeseen and unexpected aCtOrS. The dogmatıc theology of the
church 15 bound her tundamental tradıtional doetrines. Therefore, the teach-
Ings of the church ATC essentially StatiG, Al least for the past 1600 On the
other hand, the popular pıety responds the Varıous socılal, eCONOMIC PeCLr-
sonal needs of the people.

At least from the 4th /5th centurıes the cult of the Sa1lnts 1n the form of the VEIN-

eratıon of theır relics has largely determined both CONTLeENT and SITUCLUHTFE of the
plety ot the Egyptian Christians. Undoubtedly, the cult ot the relıcs of the saınts
W as hıstorically related the burıal CUSTOMS of their pharaonıc anCceSTLOrs, who
sed embalm theır dead ASSUTEC theır ıte eternal. In hıs SCIINON the “ Res-
urrection ot the Dead” (F 59 599-161 St Augustıne mentlons the ancıent
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Egyptian practice of mummiticatıon 4S kınd of “prefiguration” of the Chriıs-
t1an doetrine of the resurrection of the dead 'The Christians sımply provıded
i meanıng SOTINC of the age-old CUSTOMS of theır ANCESTIOFrS Ihe PrCSCI-
vatıon of the body W as thought be necess1ity for theır biıblical belief 1n the
resurrection. Therefore, for the 4th CENLUrCY Upper Egyptian SECT of the Meleti-
anlls 1t W as IMNa Lter of GCOUTSE mummify theır dead (r St Athanasıus, 41st
Kaster epistle). The 7Ind Coptic Patrıarch Timothy (W as ceremon1-
ously embalmed, while both Sts Antony and Pachomius vehemently COIMN-

demned both the practice of mummuiıtficatıon and the veneratıon of theır relics. In
thıs respeCL if 15 noteworthy, that the Oopts do NOLT claım POSSCSS AILY relics of
the z monastıc founders!.

'The relics of saınt, IMAaLter how small, always represent the PCISON In LOLO,
Just 4S 1n the Diıvıne Liturgy the smallest partıcle of the eucharıistıc oaf 15 the
VeCLY body of the erucıtied and riısen Lord Jesus Christ. Moreover, the relics ANK-

proof of the restoratiıon ıte of the Martyr. Martyrdom 15 regarded NOL ASs de-
feat but rather 4S victory ((Q\V-GT: death Therefore, the relics of the MAartyr AiIC the
unquestionable testımonYy of hıs victory (Q)MVGT hıs and OVer death As tF1-
ute the MAartyrS, the veneratıon of theır relics became iıntegral part of the
pıety ot the Chrıistian communıty. The fact that iın the 5th CENLUFCY CVCIY vıllage
seemed QV had Its saınt’s shrıne W as sufficıent 1CASOINN tor St Shenuda’s ell-
known outspoken eriticısm of hıs villagers wh had CVENn iınvented salınts tor
bones they assumed be those of Martyrs. Moreover, the iıdentifyıng of relıcs
W often due dream OT V1ISsS10N by SOIMNC pP10US monk (: prıest (Zoega, 188)

Throughout the centurıes, the popular plety of the Copts has undergone
INalıy mutatıons and adjustments. For the present CONTLEXT four hıstorical studıes
of Coptic relics chall be presented. The 1th CENTLUCY “ınventory” of relics by the
Alexandrıan deacon Mawhub, the descr1ptions by the 3th CENLUFY GUHWÜNÜS and
church-historian Ab ’1-Makärım, the references by the 14th/1 6:th CENTLULCY
Coptic-Arabic SYNAXAYLA aMn “ Inventory of Coptıic relics” of 1966

(One of the earlıest lısts of relıcs which WT venerated by the Copts aD PCaIs
1n the 1tda of Pope Cyrıil 11 (1078-1092) by the Alexandrıan deacon Mawhub ıb
Mansür ıbn Mutarrıg al-Iskandarı (1025-1 100) who W as also the coauthor of the
Hıstory of +he Patrıarchs of the Egyptian Church?. By the 11th CENTUFY, the
1que relics of Jesus Christ which sed ICDOSC 1ın the 4th CENTLUCY Muonastery of
the Metano1a (Penitence), mıiles eEAst of Alexandrıa 1n Canopus (Abü Qir) had
disappeared. These WOTe the famous sudarıum Christi, the towel (linteum) wıth

Ome Relics of St. Antony A1C sa1d be taken Constantınople 1n 635 They A venerated 1n
the West 1n Cologne, 1n Sıena and SINCEe the 14°h Cent 1n French CAhurches of the Anton-
ıte athers. The Coptıc monks ot the Daır nba Bakhum AL Edf$u claiım the relıcs of theır Datron
beneath column 1n theır church.
HPEC: M 111,; 358-362
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which Chriıst had washed the teet of hıs discıples Joh 13:4.5 and of the
Irue Cross (St Jerome, Z 62-63)* Although Mawhub did NOLT GG ll the
lıcs in Egypt, he StEAaLes that “r he enumeratıon ot which would be lone”, he
provıded VL Y sıgnıfıcant inventory of relics which WEEIC venerated by the
Christjans 1ın hıs days. In Alexandrıa Mawhub SA the head of St Mark the
Evangelist. In Lydda (Lud) he still Sa the relics of St George. In the Monaster-
1es of the Wadı n-Natrün he registered the relics of the three Macarın, the

enoO 4-91) and hıs SOTIlL, Sts John Colobus, Bıshoi, John Kame, James
the Sawn-asunder and the tınger of St Severus. In Alexandrıa WWGTE the relics of
the prophets Elısha and Jeremiah and the blood oft St Peter, the last of the LMar-

LYIS. At Sıngar he noticed the relics of the apostle Thecla and Philotheus.“* In
Ca1lro WEeIC the relics of Sts Hor anı Mahrayıl, John of Sanhut and Barbara. In
the White Monastery AL Sohag there WeiIiCcC still the relics of the discıples Barthol-
OINCW and Simon the Canaanıte. Those of St Paphnutius reposed 1n the Monas-
LEr y of the Beacon. In the reg10n of Asyut he Sa others the relics of Sts
Claudıus, Vıctor, John Colobus, Phoebammon, Theodore Ahal Harufus (at
Shutb)® In ıft reposed the relics of St Amsah 1n Ansına Colluthus, 1ın Abutig
Sts Biıshoi and Bısisaıih, 1ın Küs St Pısentius, 1n Dıiıtfra St Isaac and 1n al-Bana-
wanın Apa Kragon.

Qummus Ab ’1-Makarım, known 4S Ab Salıh the Armenıian, reters SCV -

era] relics of saınts which aVe SINCe disappeared. He mentioned those of Ab
Bagham and the relics of Martha and Mary of Bethany 1n the Muonastery of
Nahya, W Eest ot G1za. The relics of St Paphnutius WTG venerated W Eest ot T1am-
1LL11U9 1n the Monastery of the Beacon, those ot St Pısentius Ar Qamula whiıle the
relıcs ot St George though wıthout hıs head still reposed 1ın the OASIS of al-
Bahnasa (OAS1s DarVa) The relics of Sts Tarnımah and Basmantah AL the Upper
Egyptian Tumbudha ALG also lost

The thırd medieval SOUTCEC which contrıbutes OUuTr knowledge of relics 1n the
Coptic churches 15 the Arabıc 5Synaxar. The first recension 15 attrıbuted DPeter
Severus al-Gamil, Bıshop of Malıg d22/iB cent.) and the second recension
Miıchael, Bıshop of Atrıb and Malıg (1249 124758 On Z days of the VCalr the
Copts COmn  OFAl the translatıons of relıcs trom OTMNC Sıte (church OT Ss-

tery) another. (n days they COomMmM  OTA the invention (discovery) of

There A1C COpI1ES ot the kerchieft o Veronica (vera i1RON), the sudarıum mandylıon ın
European churches. The church 1n Kornelimünster claıms the inteum wıth which Chrıst washed
the teet of hıs discıiples.
Meınardus, O.; Singar, historical geographical Study BSACC 1966, 1752179
hıs used be famous MONASTEFY W EeSst of Tammua, G17za.
In 1966 visıted Shutb where the INCMOLY of St. Theodore W Aas completely forgotten.
Evetts, BT  9 The Churches and Monasterı1es of Egypt CC Oxtord 1895> MC ND RS 05 Basset, R ‚ Le 5ynaxaıre Arabe Jacobite, Ms 256 (16th cent.) Ms S14 CeHit.),

L, HL, XL ANE VII
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relics of certaın Sa1lnts. For example, the Copts remember the translatıon of the
relıics of St Theodore the pper Egyptian village of Shutb Hatur (Nov-
ember 14), the translatıon of St Mercurıius (Ab ’s-Saıfaın) hıs church 1n Old
Calro Ba’una une 16) and the translatıon of the relıcs of St George the
Church of St George iın Old Caliro bıb (July 23) These translations
curred ın the Middle Ages, durıng the days of the Mamelukes. The relics of St
George arrıved ın Old Calro durıng the patriıarchate of Gabriel 9-2  5
while those ot St Mercurıus reached Old Ca1lro during the days of Pope John
111 (1484-1524). It 15 noteworthy that relics of the popular Coptıic vırgın-mar-
yr St amıana and her Forty Vırgins do NOT APDPCal 1ın AalLY of the medieval lısts
(II- synaxarıa. The Dominıcan tather Michael Wansleben (1672) provıdes (1 of
the first of the cult of St amıana ia the Delta In the 1 gth Aan! 19th CE11-

LUr Yy her cult spread VC rapıdly Upper and LOower Egypt, where today there
AIC about A{° Coptıc churches dedicated St amıana

» 10ÖIn “ Inventory of the Relics of Saınts ın the Coptıc Churches of Eg2ypt
of 1966 AaVe provıded 55 entrıies tor the churches and monasterIı1es. The relics
of 11 saınts, which had mentioned, ave been lost hıs study concentrated
maınly uUDOI the Coptic churches of Caıro, the eıght actıve monasterI1es and
SOTINC sıtes 1ın Upper Egeypt Just ASs Mawhub 1n the 11th CENLUFCY did NOLT lıst al
lıcs that W.ELC venerated 1n Egypt, only mentioned those relics which had SCCH,;
realızıng that Ial y IHOTE relics reposed in SOINEC churches ın Upper and Lower
Egypt Relics of St Damıana registered 1ın tive churches, those of St George 1n
15 churches, those of St Mercurıus in S1X churches and those of St Theodore 1n
three churches. In the meantıme (2004) ( justifiably ASSUTINE that the HHH

ers of these relics ave sıgnıfıcantly increased. TOM exper1ence, havıng VIS-
ıted mMan y Coptic churches (QVGF the past torty-Iive Y  > PrODOSC that today
the Copts 1about (} relics of St Damıana, OVCI 300 of ST George, about
70 oft St Mercurıus, about of St Theodore aN! about 4() of St Menas IC

t10N only the relics ot the MOST popular tradıtional Coptıic saılnts.

111 The Beginniıngs of a ult

The translatıon of the relics of St Mark the Evangelıst trom Venice VI9a Rome
Ca1lro in June 1968 provıded tor the Copts NOLT only 111e Waren«ecss of the 1M-

of relics but also of hıstoric apostolicıty. On June Z 19658 del-
egatıon of Coptic and Ethiopıan bıshops WEeEIC met by Pope Paul VI recelve

Meınardus, O’ “ ] )as Agyptische Jungfräuliche Dreigestirn: Damıana, Katharına, Hypatıa”, Ke-
mel 2‚ 1999

10 I Ostkirchliche Studien KALL,: 273 1968, 1342174
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Translation of the relics of St. Mark trom Veniıce (CAaito, 1968 Fresco by Isaac Fanus,
Crypt of the Cathedral of St. Mark, Abbasıyah, Ca1lro

the relics ot St Mark which WeIC oift of Cardınal Urbani of Venice. OUur days
later, thıs relic W as ceremon10usly placed 1Into Cavıty of Aswan oranıte-block
1n the of the newly dedicated Cathedral of St Mark 1n Abbasıya, Cairo.  11
1ve later, the OCCasıon of the 1600° annıversary of the death of St
Athanasıus 1n May Pl Pope Paul VI presented Pope henuda 111 relic of the
Alexandrıan patrıarch Aan! churchfather Athanasıus. hıs ımportant relıc
ceıved Its place the oround floor of the Cathedral of St Mark 1ın Abbasıya.
For the Copts, these LW hıstoric EVEeENTS constıituted NOT merely the ”return” of
theır ounder St Mark and their theologian St Athanasıus. These relics
served 4S visıble testiımonYy of theır belief 1n the realıty of the ecclesia FY1-
umphans, remıinder the ecclesia milıtans of the CONtINUOUS wıtness of the
church ftrom the days ot the Apostles the present, remıinder tor such virtues
A4AS steadfastness, loyalty and sacrıtice.

In November 1978 maJor iınternatıonal news-servıces reported about the dis-
COVEIY of the relics of St John the Baptıst Aan! those of the Old Testament Pro-
phet Elisha (9th CcCent 1ın the Church of St Macarıus 1n the Monastery of

For erıitical study the relics of St. Mark, $ Meınardus, O ‚ “An Examınatıon of the Ira-
dıtions pertaınıng the Relics of St Mark”, OER Rome, 197/0, 348-376
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Chest wiıth relics of St John the Baptıst and the Ol ED  Testment Prophet Elisha.
Wadt n-Natrün.

St Macarıus of the Wadı:ı n-Natrün. hıs had occurred 1ın ent 1976 while
storıng and extending the Church oft St Macarıus. Upon quest10ns, Pope
Shenuda r avoıiıded allLYy torm of contirmation of the claıms by the monks of the

| (DMuonastery of St Macarıus
Durıng the Dast the popular pıety of the Copts has undergone maJor

changes, both 1ın theır marıo0ology ACCOUNLT of the apparıtı1ons of the
Holy Vırgıin in pper and Lower Egypt”” but also 1n theır hag1o0logy. Whereas
the maJorıty of the tradıtiıon-oriented Copts stil! adhere theır WON-
derworkıng equestrian saınts” ıke Sts George, Vıctor, Menas, Theodore and
Mercurıus, the PEGENE introduction ot relics ot tar unknown salnts has opened
altogether HE PFrOSPECLIS tor theır rel1g10us ıte

1 I “'T’he Relics of St John the Baptıst and the Prophet Elısha. An Examıiınatıon otf the claıms oft
theır recent invention”, Coptic Stu_(_:lies presented Mırrıt Butros Ghalı, Ca1lro H979 26-653

13 Id. “ ıe Marıenerscheinungen 1n Agypten e1INSt und heute”, Kemet 41 1999
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The Relics of the Theban Legıon

Until the miıddle of the 20th CENTLUFY the Copts WEeEIC UNAaWAaATIe of the ex1istence of
the MAartyrs of Theban Legıion. Neıther the medieval Coptic synaxarıa, the F3S-
LOYTY of the Patrıiarchs of the Egyptian Church NOT theır theologi1ans and church-
historians mentıon the MaAartyrs of Theban Legıion, and MC today 2004 only
the of Sts aurıce and Verena AT generally known the Copts
The discovery of the Theban Legion by and tor the Copts chould be attrıbuted

Professor Murad Kamıl who had studied A Tübingen Unıiversıty and later
taught AT Freiburg Unıiversıty. In hıs - Coptie Pıety  » he SOTILLC

of these MartyrSs A known usS$s ASs saınts, should ike mentıion St aurıce
and hıs s1ster Verena S1C Through the efforts of the Egyptian legion the first
Christian 1ssıon W as carrıed the Rhine Valley”**. And Arzız Suryal Atıya,
Protessor AL the Unıiversıty AT Onnn from 5-1  9 “Wherever the RO-
I1a  - leg10ns WEenLtT, they WCCIC apparantly tollowed by Christian mi1ıssıonarıes. To
Swiıtzerland m1ssıon from Thebes, accordıng local legend OT tradıtion, A1l-

rived 1n 785 wıth the Theban Legıon. I W as led by St Maurıtıus, who
ave earned martyrdom tor refusıng sacrıfice heathen »”  gods For the
Coptic hıistorians It W as NOLT the C4asSe€ of disobedience the authorities, NOT the
refusal kıll, but the CONCECDL of M1SS1ONAary work that became the predominant
element 1ın the evaluatıon ot the Theban mMar tyr S. However, neıither Eucherius,
bishop of Lyon 443-450), 1A07 bıshop Theodore of Octodurum reter the

16Theban soldiers havıng een Chrıistian mi1ss10Nnarıes
Sınce 1946 there ex1isted local tradıtion of the Theban Legion 1ın the Upper

Egyptian village ot Garagos, 30 km north of the ru1lns oft Karnak and Luxor
temples. A* that tiıme, the Swıss Jesuints Etienne de Montgolfier and aurıce de
Fenoy]l WEIC SCNT be 1n charge of the small Coptıc Catholic parısh 1n the vıl-
lage. The parısh-church received beautiful 1CONOSstaAasıs which included 1CONS of
Sts Verena an aurıce of the Theban Legionl7‚ In October 1986, the Copts
ceıved ftrom the Catholic Church of Zurzach, Switzerland, 4S symbol of CCU-

enıcal friendship relic of St Verena, patron of Zurzach. In March L989; z
Catholic priests of Hamburg presented Pope Shenuda 111 relics of St aurıce
the drımıcerıus of the Theban Legıion, from the Benedictine Abbey of St Maur-
1ce 1n Tholey, Saar  18 and 1n November 1991 oftfered Pope Shenuda 4 everal

14 Kamaıl, Murad, “Koptische Frömmıigkeıt”, Koptische Kunst, Christentum Nıl Essen 1963,
108

15 Atıya, Azız s $ Hıstory of Eastern Christianıty, London 1968,
16 Dupraz, Louıis, Les Passıons de Maurıce d’Agaune, Friıbourg 1961
b Jalabert, H’ La Vice-Provınce du Proche-Orient de Ia Compagnıe de Jesus, Beirut 1960,
18 Meınardus, O 9 THe Translation ot the Relics of St. Mauriıce trom Tholey Catro”:; Coptolo-

219 XI. 996 42755
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relics of the Theban Martyrs Sts Cassıus 2AN! Florentius of onnn  12 In 19958 Bı-
shop Pımen of Nagada and Qamula received additional relic of St Verena
whiıle VISIt 1n Switzerland. He maıntaıned that St Verena orıginally GALHHE

trom hıs Upper Egyptian diocese<“%
In the mean-tıme, the cult of the Theban Martyrs 15 el] incorporated 1n the

Coptıic of saılnts. Monks aV receıved the amnle of aurıce AN! U1ls of
Verena, who has also become the patron of the deaconesses of the Afriıcan Miıs-
S10N. In Anaheım, Calıfornıia, the Coptc church 15 dedicated St Verena. Relics
of St aurıce FCDOSC iın evera|] Coptıc churches, however, the “or1ginal” oift 15
ın the Chapel of St Maurıce, Daır nba Ruwaıs, Abbasıya. Accordıing

report 1n the Coptic NCWSDADCI Watanı of July Z1. Z002, July 171 d 2002;
there appeared Al nıght the Holy Vırgin Mary, St aurıce the 'Theban leader and
Pope Cyrıl VI (QVET. the OoOme of the Church of the Holy Vırgıin and St aurıce
1n ÜUmfrania; G1Zza, ın the diocese of Metropolıitan Dumadıus.

The Archeological Discoverıes

Durıng the eıghties of the Zoth CENTUrY the Coptıic Church received the relics of
the Theban Martyrs, the tirst Kuropean ımport. Sts aurıce Aan: Verena MCEC

readıly accepted. Local 1ıconography presented St aurıce NOLT AS I1L1L00OT 4S ın
INanıy European paıntings and TALHESsS but 4S Roman soldier. St Verena wıth her
attrıbutes of comb and pıtcher W as cshown AS faıthful vırgın-martyr.

The nınetles of the 20th CENLUrCY provıded altogether He aASPECLS Coptıc
hag1o0logy. Archeological discoverı1es 1ın Upper Egeypt and 1n Ca1lro brought
light relıics of everal] HE Coptıc Sa1lnts. Hundreds of relics of the Akhmım an
Fayyum MaAartyrSs WTG distributed Coptie dioceses and parıshes ın Egypt AN!
the Emigratıion.

The AkRhmim Martyrs
In March 1996 Abuna Ghobriaal al-Antünf, the resident prıest al the Monastery
of the Martyrs (Daır ash-Shuhadä) sıtuated elevatıon al the edge of the
desert EASstTt of al-Hawawısh, km north of Akhmim prepared olıve-yard
Car the MONASLET V, when he discovered 1n the proximıty of the MONASTECY
large number of skeletons trom plundered tombs.

The MONASLECY 15 surrounded by OMC ot the largest Upper Egyptian CEI1111-

19 [ä. “The TIranslatıon of the Relics of Sts ASSIUS and Florentius trom Bonn Caro% ( GEGR
9  r 1992 49-53

20 Keraza Oectober 1 ' 1998
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eterl1es wıth tombs belonging trom pharaonıc present times.  21 The modern
hıstory of thıs Vasti necropolıis begins wıth the repOrtSs of such European travel-
lers 4S Paul Lucas (1714) Rıchard Pococke (1740) Browne Hıppo-
lyte L’Höte 1839)% e

In March 884 the French archeologıst (saston Charles Maspero and Schiapa-
rell; entrusted the exCavatıons of the necropolıs C4AStE of Akhmım the Yya’”ıs
Ghalıib of Qurna: As ILLALLY A4AS 8 000-10000 ummı1es WEIC unearthed and sub-
sequently sold the Egyptian Raılway AS fuel for the engınes, others WEIC PUL-
chased by Amerıican paper-muilis. It 15 1n thıs GOMNLEXL that Mark Iwaın COIN-

mented “about the ummı1es 000 old that WEeTC purchased by the ton182  Meinardus  eteries with tombs belonging from pharaonic to present times.”! The modern  history of this vast necropolis begins with the reports of such European travel-  lers as Paul Lucas (1714), Richard Pococke (1740), W. G. Browne (1797), Hippo-  Iyte A.N. l’Höte (1839), etc.  In March 1884 the French archeologist Gaston Charles Maspero and Schiapa-  relli entrusted the excavations of the necropolis east of Akhmim to the ra’zs  Ghalib of Qurna. As many as 8000-10000 mummies were unearthed and sub-  sequently sold to the Egyptian Railway as fuel for the engines, others were pur-  chased by American paper-mills. It is in this context that Mark Twain com-  mented “about the mummies 3000 years old that were purchased by the ton....  for the purpose of fueling the locomotives”, as he advised the engineer for speed-  ing the train to burn a pharaoh rather than these poor plebeians!?? By 1888 the  necropolis was thoroughly despoiled. In 1895 R. Forrer described the site: “As  far as you can see, there are black holes, cavities, where tombs were opened,  mummies were robbed of their textiles, everywhere the necropolis has been sys-  tematically plundered.”?* Between 1962-1966 I visited this necropolis several  times. The region around the Monastery of the Martyrs appeared like a lunar-  landscape, covered with innumerable pockmarks.  Since 1990 many bones and fragments of skeletons, that had escaped being  sold as fuel to the Egyptian Railway, found their way as relics of the 8 140 mar-  tyrs of Akhmim (according to the Vatican recension of the synaxar of Tuba 1)  into the Coptic churches. Few of the Akhmim martyrs are known by name and  are commemorated in the Coptic synaxar, Sts. Mercurius and Ephraem on Abib  30, Sts. Dioscor and Asclepius on Tuba 1**, and Ananias and Chusi on Kihak 16.  Throughout the nineties, many Coptic churches and monasteries from Alexand-  ria to Aswan received from the dioceses of Akhmim and Saqulta (Bishop Bisada)  and the Fayyum (Bishop Abra’am) large quantities of relics of “anonymous  saints” of Akhmim and the Fayyum.  The Coptic Church of St. Menas, Fleming, Alexandria, claims to possess sev-  eral relics of the martyrs of Akhmim, including those of the Coptic nun  “Esther”, “St. Mina” and “Apa Nub” of Akhmim as well as an arm of an anony-  mous female martyr. The identification of anonymous relics with particular  names is a common phenomenon. These names are “revealed” in dreams or vi-  sions. In the case of one of the Fayyum martyrs, Miriam Mohared of the Church  21 Qummus Lügaä al-Antünt, The Akhmim Martyrs (arab.). Muträniya Beni Suef 1990.  22 Mark Twain, The Innocents Abroad or the New Pilgrims Progress, ch. LVIII.  23 Kuhlmann, Klaus P., Materialien zur Archäologie und Geschichte des Raumes von Achmim,  Mainz 1983.  24 The relics of Sts. Dioscor and Asclepius are venerated in numerous Coptic churches in Cairo,  Lower and Upper Egypt: Meinardus, O., “The Mystery of the Akhmim Martyrs”, CCR 21, 4,  2000, 132-138.for the PULDOSC of tueling the locomotives”, 4S he advısed the engıneer tor speed-
ıng the traın urn pharach rather than these POOI plebeians!““ By 1888 the
necropolıis W AaS thoroughly despoiled. In 1895 Forrer deseribed the sıte: A
far 4S yOU Call SCC, there A black holes, cavıtıes, where tombs WEIC opened,
mummı1es WEEIC robbed of theır textiles, everywhere the necropolıs has been 5SYyS-
tematically plundered.  »25 Between Da visıted thıs necropolıs evera|
times. The reg10n around the Monastery of the Martyrs appeared ıke lunar-
landscape, covered wiıth innumerable pockmarks.

Sınce 1990 ILLALLY bones and fragments of skeletons, that had escaped being
sold 4S fue] the Egyptian Raılway, tound theır WaVYV ASs relıcs of the 140 INar-

LYIS of Akhmim (accordıng the Vatıcan recension of the SYVYNaXar of uba 3
into the Coptic churches. Few of the Akhmim Martyrs afIc known by AaiIllec and
ATC commemorated 1n the Coptic SYNaXal, Sts Mercurıus and Ephraem bıb
0, Sts Dioscor and Asclepius Tuba 124 and Ananıas and Chusı Kıhak
Throughout the nıneties, INanı y Coptic churches an monasterIı1es trom Alexand-
rıa Aswan receıved trom the dioceses of Akhmim and Saqulta (Bıshop Bısada)
and the Fayyum (Bıshop Abra’am) large quantıitıes of relics of “anonymous
saınts” of Akhmim an the Fayyum.

The Coptie Church of St Menass, Fleming, Alexandrıa, claıms POSSCSS SCV-

era] relics of the Martyrs of Akhmim, ıncludıng those of the Coptc 1U

“Esther “St Mına” an! ADa Nub” of Akhmım 4S el]l 4S AarIN of y-
IL1LOUS female Martyr. The ıdentification of AaNONYMOUS relıcs wıth partıcular

15 COINIMMNON phenomenon. These ATC “revealed’ dreams OT V1-
S10NS. In the Case of OM  ( of the Fayyum MAartYyrS, Mırıam Mobhared of the Church

JA Qummus Lüga al-Antünf, The Akhmıiım Martyrs (arabı) Muträaniya Ben1 Suet 1990
Mark Iwaın, The Innocents Abroad the New Pılgrims Progress, ch.

T7A Kuhlmann, Klaus P’ Materıalıen Z Archäologie un! Geschichte des Raumes VO Achmim,
Maınz 1983

74 The relics of Sts 10SCOTr and Asclepius AT venerated 1n Coptic churches 1n Cairo.
Lower and Upper Egypt Meınardus, O‚ he Mystery of the Akhmim Martyrs”, (ZCR ZI: 4)
2000, 15251358
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Relics of Sts Shenuda and Wıssa
Church of St Shenuda, Old Ca1lro.

Relics of Sts Asclepius and Di0scorus.
Church of St. Shenuda, Old Calro.

of Sts George and Sarabamun 1n Shubra experienced VIS10N of the IL1LAal-

Lyr who introduced hımselt her ASs “"Giro1s’ (Kemet 1/1998).

The Fayyum Martyrs
In the SUTMNIMMET of 1994: the diocese of the Fayyum, the Egyptian Antıquities (Or-
vanızatıon and the Polish Center of Archeology excavated 1ın the PIOX-
ImM1ty of the Monastery of St Gabriel] (Daır Malak Ghobrial), Naglun, 1n the
OASIs of Fayyum. In the COUTSC of the eXCaVat1Ons, three caskets wıth four
ummı1es each WEEIC unearthed about 150 southwest of the MONASTETY. These
W.GT€ transterred the southern aisle of the Church of St Gabriel where they
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Relics of Sts Moses the Black and Isıdore wiıth votive offerings.
Church of the Holy Vırgın, Monastery of al-Baramüs.

WECIC covered wıth 1E white lınen cheets. On 2ACCOMM! of obvıous marks of LOTr-
LUTe the mummı1es, the church declared them be MAartyrs of the Christian
taıth

In December 1991 visıted the Muonastery of St Gabriel where met wıth
Abuna oel] nba Bishoir and Abuna Abd al-Masıh al-Bült. received

dark lınen which belonged ONMNC of the ummı1e€eSs and which submit-
ted tor sındological examınatıon. The result ot the carbon-14 test W 4S ate be-

1260 aM 1385 In letter of Febuary 103 1992 Bıshop Abra’am of the
Fayyum that “+The relics of the MAartyrs WeTliTC of the 2th Century.. My OW:

impression and that of the Polish Protessor Wlodimierz Godlewsk;] iıdentified
the mummnNı1eES wıth vıllagers wh. WCIC kılled by the maraudıng and plundering
Mamelukes between October and November 1798 A# that tiıme, the French
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Relics o nba Miıchael al-Bukhari. Church ot St George (northern wall), Daır al-Muharrag.

veneral Desaıx de Veygoux had wıthdrawn hıs LTOODS al-Lahun and later
Seıla, Sırsına, eFfc EASsSTt of Sınnuriıs. Villagers of the reg10n of E Qalamshah had
tled the ruıned and deserted MONASLEFY where they WEITIC massacred by the sol-
diers of the Mameluke Murad Bey. So far tinal AagreemenNt about the hıstorical
iıdentity and the ate ot the massacred vıllagers of Naglun has een reached.
Many of the Coptıic prıests assıgn the MaAarLyrs ot Fayyum (Naglun) the per10d
of the persecutıon AL the beginning of the 4th CENLUFY. Theıir reliıcs AdIC tound
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1n INanı y Coptic churches throughout the COUNLFY and also ın the churches of the
em1gration. Modern Coptıc 1COoNOgraphy has portrayed tour adults and ONEC

youth wıth the of martyrdom, 1n the background the Monastery of St
Gabrıiel, Naglun.“” Sınce 1992 the Coptic Church COMMEMOTFraTLE the MaAartyrs
of Fayyum Masrı September 1 the day ot the iınvention (discovery) of
the relics.

Z Bashound

Sınce 1980 the Coptıc churches of Old Calro and especı1ally the hıstoric Church
of St Serg1us anı Bacchus (Ab derga) aVe o1ven the iımpress10n of being c
permanent builldıng-plot”. The Egyptian Antıquities Urganısatıon and INEeMM-

bers of the local clergy ave spared effort the early medieval SAaNCc-

tuarıes, including the Church of St Serg1us. It occurred Aprıl 251991 that
workmen dıigging around the northern column of the AVC and the northern 2SsSe
of the ambon discovered everal bones “+rhat WEeIC protected trom putrefaction
due EeXCESSIVE underground waters”. They WTG removed and there W as

doubt tor Bishop attaus of Old Calro and Abuna Ghobrial Girg1s that they
belonged St Bashnuna al-Magart, “sınce there W as hıstorical mentıon of
alı y other Ssalnt PETISON 1n the church”26 The 1tda ot Pope John TÜ 166)
provıded the NECESSaL Y background the martyrdom ot the monk Bashnuna.
Durıng the caliıphate of al-Adid d 160-1 74 the Turkoman Ghuzz had kılle the

Diırgham and chaos reigned 1ın Calro. I happened 1ın thıs of ack of
order anı contusıon that Bashnuna W as se1zed. Because he refused CONVeGTF1
Islam he W as kılle and the Christians buried hım ın the Church of St derg1us
and Bacchus Bashons 24, S80 OT 116427

The repOrtL of the burıal of St Bashnuna 1ın the Church of Sts Serg1us and
Bacchus APPCars be VELY unlıkely. Apparently, there W as wıdespread CUStOmM

US«C churches 4S burial-places. In V1eW of the strıct prohıbıtion of thıs practice
issued by Pope Gabriel {{ ıb Turaik 13 a 145) 1T 15 ımprobable that only few

later thıs papal order would be disregarded (Copt SYNAaXar, Baramuda 10,
ANVL, 300)

However, accordıng the testiımonYy of medieval VIsS1tors also everal CC1-
dental pılgrims WEeIC burıed 1n the Church of St Serg1us. Sultan Muhammad ıbn
Qala’un an-Nasır (1310-1314) had transterred certaın rıghts AT priviıleges iın
thıs church the Francıscans which they retaıned for everal] centurIıes. Grefftin
Affagart)refers the “bon seı1gneur de la Rıviere” who W as buried 1n

25 ( the relıquary 1n the Church ot the Vırgın, Rod al-Farag, Ca1lro.
26 Yuhanna, Bıshop, St. Bashnouna the monk an Martyr, Caliro FT
Z HPEC Hi 1968, 88; and the Coptic SYNaXar ot Bashons Z June
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Relics of St Marına. Church of the Holy X
Vırgın, Harat ar-Rum, Calro. Icon by

Astası ar-Rüuüm7ı al-Quds  1, 1 9tl1 GEHT.

Relics of St Menas.
Church of ST Shenuda, Old Ca1lro

thıs church.“® Brocardı mentioned 1ın letter dated October 16, 1556 that 1n thıs
church 15 the tomb oft the Venet1an merchant Altfonso Basula*? Aan! Sıeur Paul
Lucas(NECW “rhat Ianı y Franks had been burijed there  »30 Never-
theless, for the Copts the relics WCGTE those of St Bashnuna which WEEIC placed ın

wooden tube an! placed 1n specıially constructed chrıne Al the siıde-entranee
of the church. Some relics WeIC o1ven Abuna Abd al-Masıh Girg1s of the
Church of St George, Fum al-Khalig.

NE Sımeon (Samaan) the Pı0us Tanner

Between the 1989 aN! 1991 extensive renovatıons ALl the subterranean
Church of the Holy Vırgin of Babylon ad-Darag ın Old Ca1lro WeIC carrıed OUuUtT

28 Affagart, G7 Relation de Terre Saınte, Parıs 1902 168
79 Monneret de Villard, U’ “Rıcerche”, X 1923 DA
30 Lucas, Paul, Voyage I! Parıs 1704, 2725
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by the Coptic Church and the Egyptian Antıquities Organısatıon. In the COUTSC

of thıs work 1It happened Sunday, August 14, 199 that relics of St Sımeon
the Tanner WCCIC discovered below the surface ın the church. The officıal LEXT

of the discovery reads:

The skeleton belongs PECISON who dıed 1ın hıs ate torties 1ın hıs early ıftıes. He 15 short of
STAaLUre, small 1in S1Ze, of brilliant and beautiful teatures. The miraculous wonder 15 that the hair of
hıs head remaıned intact and dı NOL disıntegrate because of the hıgh humidity of the place. hıs
indicated that thıs PECISON had ba head 1n the front, but had vVeCLY thiıck aır ın the back of hıs
head that reached OWN the back of hıs eck @1

19th CENLUFY 1con showing Pope Abraham ıb Za’rah the Syrıan ın the Church
of the Holy Vırgıin al-Mu’allagah 1n Old Caıiro iıncludes the bald-headed Tanner
carryıng LW water-Jars. The 1icon depicts SOINC of the characterıistics of the dis-
covered skeleton?  2  S Moreover, outsıde the nearby Church of Sts Cyrus and
John c claypot LLNOTC than ON thousand old W as discovered”. It 15 bel1ieved
that thıs vessel belonged the Tanner Sama an wiıth which he sed provıde

ftor the needy and destitute. As relıc, thıs Jar 15 NO kept 1n the the 11C

Church ot St Sama an, Mugattam, Ca1ro.
In 1eV of the discovery of the relics of thıs Salnt, Pope Shenuda 111 ordered

that the body should be divided between three churches only, namely the
Church of the Holy Vırgıin of Babylon ad-Darag, the Church of the Holy Vırgıin
al-Mu’allagah and the Church of St Sama ’ an the Tanner, Mugattam, Calro. On
July D, 992 Bıshop attaus of Old Ca1lro deposited the relics of the Salnt 1ın the
Church of the Holy Vırgin of Babylon, LW days later they WET.6 presented
the other a churches.

St Sımeon the Tanner reached fame because of hıs taıth 1n the omnıpotence of
(356d In the COUTIS6 of rel1g10Us dıspute, the caliıph al-Mu‘izz (972-975) asked
the patrıarch Abraham ıb Za’rah (  5-9 1bout the truth of the yospel. He
asked hım “1f OTC hath taıth 4S oraın of mustard-seed, Aan! he SayCst the
mountaın: ‘Be thou removed and be thou CAaSt into the SCAa, 1t <hall be one (Mt
17:20: The patrıarch agreed that thıs 15 the vospel whereupon the
lıph demanded wıtness thıs miracle be performed by hıs hands otherwise he
would destroy the patrıarch wıth hıs sword. The patrıarch requested delay of
three days 1n which he turned the Holy Vırgın. She advısed hım proceed

one-eyed tanner carryıng Jar wıth Ssince AT hıs hands the miıracle would
be manıftested. The patrıarch tollowed the advıce of the Holy Vırgın and met the
TannerT. He told the patrıarch prostrate hımself three t1imes and make the S18gn

41 Anon., The Bıography of Saınt Sama an the Shoemaker “the Tanner”, Calro 1994, 98
Lambelet, E The Escape E@ypt, Ca1ıro 1995 4.()
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of the which the patrıarch dıd Thereupon the mountaın W as lıfted three
t1imes from the ground thus transporting It the Mugattam hills?>

Sınce the 1oth CENTLUrY the Copts fast three days prıor the days PIC-
Chrıistmas fast ın commemoratıon of the miracle of the transter of the hills the
Mugattam. The pre-Christmas fastıng SCAaSOTIN extends OMI 42 days beginnıng
November 25

SE Aane

ver SINCE 1987 international LEA M of archeologists under Protessor Helmut
Buschhausen (Vıenna) excavated the S1te of Daır Ab Fana; Sl} km south of
Mınya al the edge of the desert Ca Qasr Hor. Whıile the 1td of the famous Up-
PCI Egyptıian saınt W as known, only the paleopathological examınatıons could
contirm the Strange ascet1C practices of Apa 2NEe  2 late 4th/5th CeNTt. aASCELTE,
Apa aNne orıgınated ftrom the vıllage of Abusır CAR al-Ashmunain (Hermopolıis
magna). For 15 he had Iıved ın absolute darkness 1ın Ga G: Whıile eatıng
and sleeping he rested hıs body all because of hıs morbus bechterew (spon-
dylitıs ankylosans). hıs condıtıon BAaVC hım the Aalillec ane OT Palm After the
death of Apa ane large communıty of monks emerged. In the 3th CENTLUCY the
MONASTEFY enjoyed much prestige; Z hundred later, however, only a
monks resiıded there?>. Bıshop Demetrius of Mallawı translated the relics of Apa
ane trom hıs church al Daır Ab ana the Cathedral of Mallawı.

Yust, relatıon of Jesus Christ

Durıng the restoratıon of the hıstorıc Church of the Holy Vırgin 1n the Upper
Egyptian Monastery of al-Muharraq AE al-Qusı1a workmen discovered (IDE-
tober Z 2000 the tomb of Yusı (sometimes also known A Musa) underneath the
threshold of the the SANCLUAFY. Accordıng the 8th CENTUFY “Vısıon
of the Patriıarch Theophilus” (  4 Yusı W as blood relatıve of Joseph, the
SPOUSC of the Holy Vırgin Mary. An angel had instructed hım proceed from
Jerusalem pper Egypt WAarn the Holy Famıily of the designs of Kıng
Herod Whıile ATı the Site ot the present MONASLEFCY Yusı died.*® On the Feast of

HPEC I 11, 1948, 140-144 Abu '-Makarım (13th cent.) places the miracles ot the transter of the
mountaın the Mugattam Into the reign of al- A 7717 bılallaih (  e Evetts, BL OP-.CIt.,
D
Gabra, ( “ Salr Vıta des Bane, eınes Heıiligen des 4 /5 J65s. BSAC KT,, 1990; PTE

35 Buschhausen, H’ T DaS Mönchswesen 1ın Abu D,  Fano Agypten, Schätze A4US dem Wüüstensand
CEC:; Wiesbaden 19796, 65-6/
Mıngana, Alphonse, “The Vısıon ot Theophilus, the Book ot the Flight of the Holy Famıly
Into Egypt  E Bull of the John Rylands Library Manchester, E L929; 383-4725
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the Holy Cross Tut A (September Z7°) the monks of the Muonastery of the
Holy Vırgin al-Muharraq COMM  Orat the blessings of Yusı.

Coptıc opes An Patriarchs

Seventy-four ot the 116 Coptic ATC iıncluded saınts 1n the Coptic S ya
AT Until the transter of the Coptıic patrıarchate trom Alexandrıa Ca1lro 1n
the 11th CENTLUFY MOST patrıarchs WT buried 1n Alexandria either ın Bucolıa, the
Church of the Cave, the Dominicıum the Church of St Mark, later 1ın the
Monastery ot St Macarıus, Wadı 'n-Natrün. TOom the 11th CENTUrYy onwards
they WG burıed 1n ONMNC ot the Calrene churches.

Together wıth the relics of the three acarıl (Sts Macarıus the Great, Maca-
r1us the Alexandrıan and Macarıus of Tkoou) and St John the Short, ten Coptıic
patrıarchs ICDOSC 1n the choir of the Monastery of St Macarıus 1n the Wadı N
Natrün. They A Kha’il I1{ 849-51), Kha’il H1 (  -9  9 Gabriel 910-20),
Cosmas { 11 920-32), Macarıus 2-5 )’ Christodoulos (  e  9 Cyrıil 11{
1078-92), John 147-66), Mark 111 (1 166-89) and John (

Relics of the tollowing and patrıarchs AI today venerated in everal of
the Coptıic churches 1n Ca1lro and Alexandrıa. Anıanas ( 83) W as consecrated by
the Evangelist St Mark Peter 310) W as the last of the early Martyrs of the
church. Athanasıus the Great (328-43) served ASs the MOST ımportant theologian
ot the Alexandrıan church. Theophilus( closed all pre-Chrıstıan
temples (Canopus, efe.); lıbraries (Museıon) and persecuted the Pagans (Hypa-
t1a). Zacharıas (  -3 suffered durıng the violent persecutions ot the Calıph
al-Hakım. John A/4 s ascended the pontifical throne As layman. Dur-
ıng hıs PAapaCcV the Copts remember Michael of Damıietta and St Tarfa, OUtL-

standıng9who built CONvent! of Ab Nofter (Onuphrius). Michael
(orıgınally of Samalut, served only tor ONMNC VYCal and three days. John
X](W AaS ONEC of LW patrıarchs from the Dper Egyptian Monastery of
the Holy Vırgın al-Muharrag. Hıs office lasted three and tour months.

Whıile the Anıanas, Athanasıus and Theophilus W GTG buried 1in Alexan-
drıa, Zacharıas, John VL Michael and John X WEIC buried 1ın the Church of
the Holy Vırgın by the Steps of Babylon 1n Old Cairo, where maJor excavatıons
WEeIiITC carrıed OUuUtTt 1n 1990 and 1991 I 15 reasonable ASSUTIIEC that 1n the COLWLT SE
of these works relics ot the WT unearthed and transterred the Church
ot St Menas, Fleming, Alexandrıa.

Coptıc C  NEeW Saınts

The INCMOLY oft Coptic c  NEeEW MArtyrSs and saınts increases wiıth each and
violent outbreak of persecution by anatıc Muslims. Therefore, IT 15 CO1NCI1-
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dence that ın these days the of these wıtnesses A brought the N-

ti1on of the believers. Theır relics ATC venerated 1ın everal churches an_-

1es. The AL George al-Muzahim (Ba’una 19 June 26); Michael of Damı-
eita of the Monastery of St John Kame >Michael at-TIukhı
Sıdhom Bıshai((Baramhat 1/ March 26); Salıb ()I: Stauros of Hor (Kı
hak d December 12) The martyrdoms of these HAC1I AL remınder of the large
number of Copts who ave witnessed for theır taıth from the 7th CENTUCY the
present day.  Ml

The veneratıon of the relics of Abuna Abd al-Masıh al-Magarı 1l-Manahra
(  ’ in the Church of the Holy Vırgıin AT Manahra, those of Abuna
Yustus al-Antün1 (1910-1976) in the Monastery of St Antony 1ın the Red Sea 1Da
SErt and those of Abuna urqus al- Askıiti (1942-1983) in Calıfornıia, USA,;
cshould still be SCCI1 1n of cultus ımmemoriabılis, 4S kınd of popular s11l-
CN recognıtion which miıght be comparable beatificatio acquıpollens.

V1 Foreıgn Imports

Sınce the nınetles of the 70th CENTLUFY, relics, often symbols of friendly ecumen1-
cal relatıons, WTG presented by estern donors Coptic dioceses 2AN! parıshes.
In almost ll instances these relics had either reposed 1n Roman Catholıic
churches OT monasterIl1es OTr belonged collections 1n Germany, France ()I: Italy.

Many relics of estern Sa1nts orıginated 1n Venıiıce where SINCE 1204
Christian LLEASHTES of Constantinople WG collected. After havıng ascended the
ımperı1al throne of the Lombards ın Mılan May Z6; 1805, Napoleon contis-
cated the vold, sılver an prec10us STONES trom the medieval relıquarıes. Most of
the relıcs WTG saved and stored 1ın boxes. Almost ll of the relics of estern
Salnts which the Copts acquıred durıng the past orıginated from Catho-
lic collections. Wıth the dec1isions of the Second Vatıcan Councıl evera| ımport-
Aant changes 1n the valuatıon of C honored sacred treasures led
1fts and transters orthodox churches. The head of St Andrew W as translated

Patras (Sept 26, 1964), St Sabas W as returned the Greek Orthodox Patrı-
archate 1n Jerusalem (November I2 the head ot St 'Titus W as translated
trom Veniıice Cirete (May L and relics of St Mark the Evangelist WEeIC

presented the Coptic Church une 24, 1968

Meıinardus, O’ Iwo thousand Years of Coptıc Christianıity, Ca1lro 1999 31 HE AD
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Biblical Saıints

In 1eW of the bıblical renalıssance 1n the latter part of the 20th CENLUFY 1n Ianı y
Coptic parıshes, Coptıc churches aV acquıred relics of New Testament PCL-
SONAaSCS, discıples and apostles. These include those of St Anne, the mother of
the Holy Vırgin Mary, St Joseph, SPOUSC of the Vırgın Mary, St John the Baptıst,
St Stephen the tirst MAartYyr, Sts Mary, Martha and Lazarus of Bethany, the
Apostles James Zebedaeus, James Alphaeus, Thomas, Bartholomew, Tiımothy,
John, Mark, Luke, Barnabas, DPeter and Paul Whıile the PCISONS AT hıstorical,
theıir reliıcs should be assıgned medieval OT modern iıdentifications.

The Holy Innocents of Bethlehem
Alltogether 1IC in INanı y Coptic churchs 1n Gatto: Alexandrıa and 1n Upper
Egypt Al SIncCe 2001 small tubes, covered wiıth pPrec10us velvet and sılk, contaın-
ıng the relıcs of the Holy Innocents of Bethlehem For Ial y Copts these hıghly
esteemed reliıcs Al testimon1es of the biblical EVENTS that led the tlight oft the
Holy Famıily Lower and Upper Egypt

For medieval European Christians the veneratıon of the Holy Innocents of
Bethlehem 8-1 W as always OLlC ot theır ımportant devotions. Relics of
the Holy Innocents AT ftound 1ın almost a1] Catholic GEeNFPEFSs 1n Rome S Paolo
I11., Marıa Maggıore); Padua S Giustina); Bologna (Francıscan Church); Au

Eınsıedeln; Cologne (Francıscan Church); Vıenna (S Stephen)); Lissabon
(Cathedral); Milano (Cathedral) and 1n innumerable relıquarıes throughout
Germany, Austri1a, Italy, France, IC

In the 6th CENLUFY relics of the children reposed 1ın the basılica of Davıd outsıde
of Bethlehem. Later they WECIC moved the Milk-Grotto the road Beth
Sahur. Durıng the crusader-peri0d the relics tound permanent place 1n SOTINC of
the beneath the Church of the Natıvıty 1n Bethlehem *® In orthodox Lra-
dıtions the number of the Holy Innocents of Bethlehem varıed between
(Greek and Russıan) and 144 0OÖ children accordıng the Coptic SyMhaXar of
TIuba (35 January IS} The prophet Micah had clearly desecribed Bethlehem 4S

“lıttle the clans ofJudah (5:2) and John called Bethlehem village
which that Bethlehem and the ımmediate envıronment (Mt 2:16) had COMN-

sıderably less than 1000 inhabitants!
For the European pılgrıms of the 14thb_1 7th CENLUrY the Holy Land VISIt

Bethlehem W as consıdred absolute requırement. There the nobles had
chance poke about 1n the 3Ist by candlelıght hopıing find A least portion
of ON of those Iaı Y thousand bodies of the Holy Innocents which WEEIC be-

35 KOpp, C’ Dıi1e heiligen Statten der Evangelıen, Regensburg 1959 74-85
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lıeved be of specıal spirıtual value.?? (One of the (serman knıghts, Frater
Felıx Fabrı (1483), approached the Calıinus (chief dragoman) wıth offer of 100
ducats tor entire body. However, after the pılgrıms had earned that the sultan
Qa ıt Bey had reserved tor hıimself the monopoly of the Holy Innocents, the
nobles decıded acquıre child 1ın Calro. There the dead bodies of OT

stillborn children WLLE procured “where Saracens ATl Mamelukes cJash them
wıth knıves, embalm theır bodies ATl sold them Christian princes an weal-
thy people”.  » 40 hus INalıy of the relics of the Bethlehem children WETC presented

churches and monasterIı1es north of the Alps while others WEeIC stored ın Ven-
1ce. In 1980 the Goptic Church instıtuted Coptıc Orthodox Cultural Center 1n
Venice. TOom Catholic rıends 1ın Venice the Coptic Metropolitan Marcos of the
Coptic Church in France received IHNalıy relics which he subsequently presented

Coptıic churches and dioceses 1n Egypt.41

The Martyrs of Najran
For MOST opts, the 7th CENTLUCY MAartyrs of Nayran, Southern Arabıa ( Yemen),
aTrCc totally unfamıliar, S1INCe they WTG either Nestorı1ans OTL Byzantıne Christians
(dyophysıtes). Today relics of the Nayran MAartyrs ICDOSC in the Church of the
Holy Vırgin 1ın the Monastery of al-Baramüs (Wadı n-Natrün) and 1n everal
Coptic churches 1ın Calro and Alexandrıa. Arethas and 400 nobles of the 111971 -

tyropolıs of Najran W.GLE decapıtated around S} by the Jewish Hımyarıte kıng
Dhü-Nuwas.“** The Greek Orthodox Church COMMEMOTFrATLES the MAartyrs of
Najran October and SOTINC of theır relics ICDOSC 1ın Greek Orthodox Mon-
asterles 1n Cyprus; Mount Athos and 1ın evera|] monasterı1es ın Kalavrıta, Ai-
x1alıa, etc

Byzantıne Church-fathers
'The relics of the tour Byzantıne church-fathers, Sts Basıl the Great, Gregory of
Nyssa, Gregory of Nazıanzus and John Chrysostomus AIC foreign imports, al-
though they A included AS salnts 1n the Coptıc SVYNAaXar. 'The relics of St Mod-

of Jerusalem aTre venerated 1n everal Coptic churches. It 15 noteworthy
that the relics of the theologian Clement of Alexandrıa (2nd cent.) AiIC 1-

The Wanderings of Felix Fabrı (£r. Stewart), PPTS VILL, 1892-97/, 565
40 lbıd., 566
41 Letter trom Metropolitan Marcos of June 4’ 2002 trom Cientre Culturel Copte Orthodoxe,

6548 Castello, enez1a.
Shahıd, I’ The Martyrs of Najyran. New Documents. Brussels 1971 Papathanassıou, Athanas-
S10S$ N) “Christian Mıssıons 1n Pre-Islamic South Arabıa”, Theologıa, Athens, 1994, 1433146

43 Meınardus, O’ S study ot the Relics of the Greek Orthodox Church”, OrChr 5 9 1970, 145
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ated 1n the Church of St Menass, Fleming, Alexandrıa, although he 15 NOLT

Coptic saınt!

Latın Saınts

The relıcs oft al Latın MAartyrs and saınts WLG oifts from Varı0us Roman ath-
olıc churches Coptic parıshes OT monasterı1es during the past LOrty
They include those of St Augustıine and hıs mother St Monica and the Sa1lnts
Sebastıan, Agatha, Agnes and Lucıa.

An Inventor'y of the NE'‘ Coptıc Saınts

hıs lıst includes the relics of those Coptıic saınts that diıd NOLT ADDCAaL 1n 1N-
VeENLOrCY of 1966 (Following abbreviations AD sed Alexandrıa; Cairö:

Old Caro: BV  Z Blessed Vırgin Mary; George; Mark:; Mn
Menas:; Mr Mercurı1us).
Agathon Stylites (Iut 14, Sept 24)
As 4ASCETE he 1n the Scetis, 5() column 1n Sakha, (7th
CeNt.).
BVM, Sakha

Abra’am of the Fayyum (Ba una 5 June 10)
Popular bıshop (1829-1914) of the Fayyum. Mausoleum, Daır al-Azab,
ayyum.
Akhmim Martyrs (Iuba I January 9)
Sai1d be MAartyrs of the 4th CENLUTY. Theıir relıcs A wıdely distrıbuted 1n Ianı y
dioceses and parıshes throughout Egypt
Anıanus (Hatur Z0; November 29)
Second patrıarch of Alexandrıa, consecrated by St Mark
Mn, A: Cymus and John, Abukıir:; M, Shubra, &: Mn , A eticCc

Antınoe Martyrs (Kıhak Z January 6)
Martyrs of the 4th CENLUFY, 150 INCIL, 24
John, Ab Hınnıs:; BV  Z Damshiriya,
Apba ane +he Ascete (Amshbir 6, February 4)
Founder of Daır Ab ana WEeSstTt of Mınya, 4th Cent.

Cathedral, Mınya.
Apa Fıs (only 1n the Psalmodia)
BVM, Mu’allagah,
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ÄpnDa Hor the Ascete (Kıhak Z December 11)
BV  z Mu’allagah, Mn,
Äpa Klog +he Ascete (Colluthus) (Ba una Z June 17)

4th CENTUFY.Unmercenary physıcıan, MAartYyr,
Apa Klog, al-Fant, south of enı Suet

AÄpa Nub of Nahisa (Abıb 2_’ July 31)
youth wh sutfered martyrdom.

Apa Nub, Samanud, Shargıya; Mn,
Abpıp an Apollo (Baba 23, November
Ascetes Hnl Martyrs, 4th CENT:

Mn, A; George Barbara, Daır Samwıl, Qalamun.
Athanasıus, 2oth patrıarch 328-73) (Bashans VE May 15)
Fourth Cent. theologıan Aan! church-tather.
M, Abbasıya, C: Menas and Raphael, E: BV  z Damshırıya, Abraham, Shu-
bra,; ©: BV  z and Bıshoin, Attaba, ©: BVM, Massara,; ©: George, Mn, A;
Athanasıus, Damanhur, G
Barnabas the Apostle (Kıhak Z December 30)
He went Cyprus where he sutffered martyrdom (Acts 6-15;
M, Shubra,
Barsum the Naked (Nası S, September 10)
He lıved for ILLAaIly 1n the of the Church of St Mercurıus, later

heap of ust an ashes AT Ma sara,; he died 1547
Cathedral Ma’sara.

Bartholomew the Apostle (Iut 1. September 1 1)
He preached 1n Mesopotamıa, Arabıa, Indıa, later 1ın al-Kharga OQasıs.
Mr,
Bashnund (Bashans 24, June 1)
As monk of the Monastery of St Macarıus he suttered martyrdom in 1164
Sts Serg1us and Bacchuss,
Basıl the (Jreat (Iut 15 September 23)
(One of the Byzantıne doctors of the Church.
M, Shubra, C: “Patmos . C: Mn,
esaq (Miısra 6, August 12)
Successor of St Shenuda 1ın the Whıte Muonastery, Sohag.
St Shenuda,
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Bisada (Iuba 24, February
artyr of the 4th GL
St Biısada, al-Abaıwa Sharg, Sohag; St Misaıl, Daır Samwıl, Qalamun.
Claudius (Ba’una I, June 18)
He W as DG of the equestrian warrılor-saınts of the Basılıdes cycle, wh suffered
martyrdom 1n the CENLUFY.
Mn,
(‚0osmM.Aas an Damıan (Hatur 2 December
They WGTE popular UNIMMEICCHNALV physıcıans wh sutfered martyrdom 1n the 4th
CENLUFY.
(CCosmas and Damıan, Manyal Shıha, Gıza; BV  e Mu’allagah, Mr, M,
Shubra, C: BVM; Damshirıya, Mn, Fum al-Khalig, CS Mn,
Demetrius (Baba 29, November
Demetrius of Thessalonica suffered martyrdom in the 4th CENLUFY.
Mn,
Dioscorus an Asclepius of Akhmim (Iuba I; January
Shenuda, BV  Z Umranıya, Gıza; Mn,
Elisha, 9th CeNz Prophet (Ba’una 20: June 27
Monastery of St Macarıus, Wadı 'n-Natrün.
Epiphanius (Bıfam) (Bashans 17 May 25)
Served 4S bıshop of Cyprüs.
BV  z Mu’allagah, Mn,
Esther of Akhmim
One of the Akhmim Martyrs.
Mn,
Euphrosyne
G, Harat Zuwaıila, ( Mn,
Fayyum Martyrs (Miısra 26, September 1)
The relics WEeTC discovered 1ın the tall of 1991 and wıdely distributed 1n ILLAaLLY
dioceses and parıshes throughout Egypt
George of Alexandrıa (Hatüur 7 November 17)
Martyr of the 4th CENLUCY persecutıions.
BV  < Uranıya, Giza; Mn ,
George al-Muzabhim (Ba’una 19 June 26)
He W beheaded 1n Damıra 959
Apa Nub, Sammanud: Daır Sıtt Damıana, Biılgas; Mn,
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Gregory of Nazıtanzus (Hatur Z November 30)
Known Gregory T’haumaturgus, he 15 ONEC of the doctors of the Byzantıne
church.
“ Patmos” Chürch,
Gregory of Nyssa (Baba 17 October 2%)
He 15 ONEC of the doctors of the Byzantıne church.
M, Shubra,
Helena, Queen (Bashans 2 May 17)
As pılgrım the Middle ASst che 15 belıeved ave built Ial y churches ın
Egypt
Daır S1ıtt Dımıiana, Bilgas.
Heraclides
Betore hıs martyrdom iın the 4th CENTLUFY, he blessed Julıus of Adgfahs.
Cathedral Mallawı.

Innocents of Bethlehem (Tuba 3 January 11)
In the Coptic tradıtion they ATC the 144000 wh “have NOLT detiled themselves
wıth OINCIL, for they AD chaste” (Rev. 14:4)
Shenuda, BV  z Damshiriya, George ATl Barbara, Dahab, bra-
ham, G BV  Z and Bıshoi, Attaba, C BV  Z Dagadus; Ishnın an-Nasara; Mn,
Isaac of Tiphre (Bashans 6, May 14)

thaumaturgus and mar tyr durıng the 4th CENTUFY persecut1ons.
BV  z Mu’allagah,
Isıdore (Ba’una 24, July 210
As presbyter he took Moses the Black St Macarıus.
Daır al-Baramüs, Wadı 'n-Natrün.
Iskhiron of Qallın (Ba’una / June 14)
JTogether wıth Alphanius, Armanıus, Arcıias,; DPeter and Cyracos Iskhiron suf-
tered martyrdom 1n Antınoe durıng the Diocletian persecutıion.
BV  Z Mu’allagah, BV  Z Harat ar-Rum, G: Mn, A; Daır Samwıl, Qalamun.
James Alphaeus (Amshir 10 February 12)
He W as kılled durıng the reign of Claudıus, wh ordered hım be stoned
death
M, Shubra,
James Zebedaeus (Baramuda L, Aprıl 25)
Brother of the Evangelıst and apostle John, W as decapıtated by Herod Agrıppa
1n 44 (Acts 2 Sınce S70 hıs relics ATIC venerated 1ın Compostela, Spaın.
Mr,
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James the Sawn-Asunder (Hatur Z December
As member of the royal ouard he wıtnessed Kıng Sapur of Pers1a and W 4S sub-
sequently C1IE into 37 pleces.
Mr, Mn, A: Daır as-Surıan, Wadı n-Natrün.
John +he Baptıst (Iut Z September 12)
The PTITECULSOL of Christ W AS decapıtated by Herod Antıpas (Mt 1-12)
Daır Abüu Madgar, Wadı 'n-Natrün; Abraham, Shubra,;
John Chrysostomus (Bashans 12; May 20)
(OIne ot the tour 4th CENLUFY doctors of the church.
BV  Z Damshbıirıya, Abraham, Shubra, C: Mn,
John the Evangelıst (Bashans 16, Mlay 24)
According Coptic tradıtion, he the Gospel, the three etters and the
Apocalypse.
BV  z Damshiriya, BV  Z Massara, Shubra, S Abraham, Shubra,
John of Heraclea
Christian ofticer suffered martyrdom iın the 4th CENLUTY.
BV  < Mu’allagah, BV  Z Damshbhırıya, BV  Z Umranıya, Giza; Mn,
Joseph, Spouse of the Holy Vırgın (Abıb Z6, August
Joseph the Just died AT the ARC of 1.11
Mr,
Julius of Agfahs (Iut Z October 2)
Offticer and author of Ianı Y martyrologies, kılled ar Samannud 1n the 4th GCE11-

LUr Y.
Shenuda, BVM, Umranıya, ( Mn,
Lazarus (Bashans Z June
Brother of Mary and Martha of Bethany, bıshop of Larnaca. Cyprus.
BV  z and Bıshoi, Attaba, C M, Shubra,
Lucas E Bıshop of Manfalut and Abnub, 19372
Mn,
Lucas IL: Bıshop of Manfalut and Abnub, 1965
Mn,
Lucıa of Syracuse
Martyr of the Diocletian persecution 1n Syracuse, Sıcıly.
Daır Marı Girg1s,
Luke the Evangelıst (Baba Z November 1)
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He W as OIlC of the A0 author of the Gospel. He suffered martyrdom under Nero.
Mn,
Martha of Egypt (Ba’una D June 10)
Formerly prostitute, che became ASCELE and lıved tor 25 ın the wiılder-
SS

BV  Z and Bısho1, Attaba,
Mary the Armenı1an (Miısra Z September 2)
She sutfered martyrdom during the persecutions of Baıbars, 15th GEAEt.

Mn,
aryut Martyrs
George an Barbara, Dahab, Mn,
Aaurıce (Iut 12; Septernber 22)
Commander of the Theban Legıon, kılled 1ın the 4th CENTUCY AT Agaunum (St
Morıtz), Swıtzerland.

Daır nba Ruwalıs, ‚SE BV  z Rod al-Farag, C® M, Shubra, S: BVMDam-
shirıya, Mn,
Mikhail al-Bukharı (Amshır 16; February 23)
One of the MOST popular Upper Egyptian saılnts of Daır al-Muharrag, 1847
973
Daır al-Muharrag; G, Ishnın an-Nasara: Cyel, Nag Hammadı: BVM, Harat
Zuwalila, C: Shenuda, M, Maryut; Daır al-Azab, Fayyum; BV  Z Damshıi-
r1ya, George and Bıshoi, Dahab, BV  Z Umranıya, Giza; Mn,
Mikhail AL- Tukhıi (Kıhak 3© January 8)
Suttered martyrdom January S, 183
BVM Nunnery, Harat Zuwalıla,
Modestus of Jerusalem
Byzantıne patrıarch of Jerusalem 63
M, Shubra,
Moses the Black (Ba’una 24, July
Once robber, he W as converted and joıned the monks under Isıdore in the
Wadı 'n-Natrün.
Daır as-Surıan: Daır al-Baramüs, Wad: n-Natrün; Apa Nub, Samannud.

Najran Martyrs
eventh CENTUFY Martyrs of Southern Arabıa, Yemen.
BV  Z Damshiriya, M, Shubra, C: Daır al-Baramüs, Wad:; n-Natrün; Mn,
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Onuphrius (Elatur 16; November 25)
Fourth CENTUFY ASGCELE of the inner desert, discovered by Paphnutius
BV  Z Mu’allagah, Daır Amır Tadrus, Harat ar-Rum,
Peter an Panul, Apostles (Abıb 5: July 12)
Cathedral, Tanta: M, Helıi0polıs, C: Abraham, Shubra, C: Michael, Daher, ®:
BV  z and Bıshoi, Attaba, (& M, Shubra,
Payul the Simple (Amshır Z February

discıple of Antony the (Sreat
Mn,
Peter t+he Ast artyr (Flatur Z December 8)
Known A4ASs the “Cea|] of the martyrs”, he W as the l 7th patrıarch.
Apa Nub, Samannud; M,; Shubra, C BV  Z Damshbhırıya, George and Bar-
bara, Dahab, Mn,
Phoebammon (Ba’una 1, June
4th CENLUCY soldier, kılled 1n Asyut
BV  Z Damshbıirıya, G, Harat Zuwaıila, C Daır al-Baramüs, Wadı H- I\Na-
trun; BV M, Umranıya, Gıza; Mn,
Rebecca an her SONLS (Hüt / September :
atıves of Mamunıiıya Car Qus, they suffered martyrdom 1n Lower Egypt
Daır Marı Gıirgı1s, Daır Marı Gıirgıis, Harat Zuwaıila, C: Rebecca,; Sunbat:
Mn,
Salıb (Stauros) (Kıhak I, December 12)
e Martyr kılled durıng the Islamıc per10d.

BV  z Shentana al-Hagar; BV  Z Harat Zuwalila, C: BV  z Damshırıya, BV  Z
E7bet al-Azız, Minufiya; G, Shubra al-Khema, E: George and Barbara, Dahab,

Daır al-Baramüs, Wadı n-Natrün; Mn,
Samdan +he Tanner (Abıb 28, August 4)
He advısed Pope Abraham the Syrıan (1oth century) PTIay tor the mMOVvıng of
the mountaın the Mugattam (Mt A 20)
BV  Z Mu’allagah, BV  Z Steps of Babylon, Sımeon, Mugattam, (:
BV  Z Umranıya, Gıza; George and Bısho1, Dahab,
Severus of Antıioch (Amshir 14, February 21)
As leadıng ot the Councıl of Chalcedon (451 he ftound refuge 1ın
Egypt In Constantinople he W as protected by the CHMDICSS Theodora, he died ın
539 He W as Syrıan Orthodox patrıarch.
BV  Z Sakha; Daır as-Surıan, Wadı 'n-Natrün.
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Sımeon +he Armenı1an (Baramuda Aprıl 2/)
As bıshop of Dersıa he W as beheaded by Shapur He died AL the ApCc of 127
Mr, Mn,
Sımeon Stylites (Mısra August

stylıte who 15 column northern 5yrıa
Mn,
Stephen the first MNAYLYY (Iuba January
Archdeacon who sutffered martyrdom through STONINS (Acts an
Mn,
Takla Haymanot (Mısra August 20)
Medieval Ethiopian natıonal
Barbara Shubra, Mr, BV  Z Rod a} arag, Mn,
Theban Martyrs
They belonged the Theban Legion that suffered martyrdom the Rhine Val-
ley Swiıtzerland and Germany

Shubra,
Theophilus (Baba 18 October 28)
The 23rd Patrıarch theolog1an and apologıst condemned the heresies of
UOrıgen

Shubra,
Thomas the Apostle (Bashans 26 June
Patron of the Syrıan Orthodox, received the oirdle of the BV  Z al her 4S -

BV  z and Bıshoi Attaba,
Thomas of Shanshıf (Bashans July 24)
AÄscete eEAst of Akhmıiım CONLEMPOFAaFrY wıth Shenuda the archimandrite
Shenuda BV  z Rod l Farag, Shubra, George and Barbara,
Dahab BV  Z F7bet al Azız Minufiya; Daır Marı Girg1s Mn

Iimothy (Iuba D January 31)
He W as ONEC of the F dıscıples and receıved LW etters ftrom Paul

Shubra,
Verena (Miısra 26, September
Member of the Theban Legıon, che W AS kılled ı Zurzach, Swiıtzerland.
BV  = Damshırıya, Pontitical Chapel, nba Ruwaıs,
Zacharias (Amshbhır Z February 28)
eventh CENLUFY bıshop of Sakha tor 30
BVM Sakha


